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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP 202007115 GIS Web Mapping Application, GISTAR Upgrades Camp Keyes Augusta Maine

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Defense, Veterans, and Emergency Management 

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	18 August 2020

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	21 August 2020

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	02 September 2020

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.




Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answers

	Question #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Is the spy glass functionality in the swipe tool required if we are able to get the vector layers to appear correctly?
	No, the spyglass is not necessary as long as the horizontal and vertical swipe options function with the vector layers appearing correctly.

	2
	Is offshore delivery acceptable?
	We do not specifically state otherwise, so yes, we will allow it.

	3
	Does the Department have the complete code of the existing Application?  
	Yes.

	4
	What technology and framework is the current application built on?
	ArcGIS API for JavaScript, GISinc OneView, Microsoft IIS.

	5
	Is there an Architecture diagram of the current application that can be shared?
	No there is no architecture diagram available to be shared.

	6
	Is a complete rewrite expected, or update the existing code base?
	This is up to the vendor, but we are fairly certain updates to the existing application will be much more economical.

	7
	Are the updates going to be only in the Front end?  Or is Backend also included in the scope?
	We are not the developer, we can only expect in order to update the front end you will need to make the changes to the back end.

	8
	What kind of access control does the current Application have?
	The current application is built on a secure DoD network.  Only authenticated CAC-enabled users in the Windows Active Directory can access it.  It does not prompt for your CAC credentials when you open the application, but rather once you login to the network and are authenticated you will have access.

	9
	What other systems does the GISTAR Application interact/interface with?
	The GISTAR application interacts with two instances of ArcGIS Server on two separate servers, one hosting map and features and one hosting image services, all consumed and utilized by the GISTAR application.  

	10
	Does the Department wish to upgrade the version of the OneView platform?
	No, we do not believe that is necessary.

	11
	There are several enhancement requests as part of this RFP that will result in customization and migration away from GIS Inc.’s OneView platform.  Is the Department amenable to moving away from OneView and OneView product compliance?
	Absolutely. The Department is not obligated to maintain the OneView platform.  The bidder has full flexibility to customize the current platform as they see fit to accomplish the desired outcomes.  It should be clear that the Department will not pay any additional software or maintenance fees for any proprietary software that we either currently don’t use or is not included as part of an ELA (i.e. esri).  It should also be stated that when considering migrations away from the current architecture, ease of modifications and alterations (e.g. to configuration files) by non-developers should be considered.

	12
	Does the Department have a current or future support and maintenance contract with GIS Inc?
	No.

	13
	What is the planned budget for this project?
	That cannot be disclosed.

	14
	In order to better estimate the requested enhancements, can the Department provide access to the GISTAR web mapping application?
	Unfortunately, no.  The application resides on a secure DoD server and is only available through Intranet.

	15
	Is there any limitation using offshore resources for project execution?
	No there is no limit to using offshore resources.

	16
	What is the architecture of the current system? It helps us to understand the current system and provide precise estimates for the upgrade.
	It is built on the ArcGIS API for JavaScript, GISinc OneView, and Microsoft IIS.

	17
	We assume fixing any issues in the existing version is not in the scope of this RFP. Please confirm.
	Anything not clearly stated in the scope of the deliverables of this RFP is not the responsibility of the bidder.  That being said, there may not be any known issues in the existing application (other than those identified in the scope) and therefore we fully expect the application to be maintained at its full operational capacity.  If there are minor issues identified either by the Department or the vendor during the initial phases of the contract that were not caused by the vendor and not included in the scope, we will discuss options on how best to proceed.

	18
	What is the current state of GISTAR platform i.e., how many issues current application is producing?
	Other than the issues specified in the scope and occasional/frequent network latency, there are no other know issues.

	19
	Please confirm whether the development environment will be provided to the offshore team for upgradation with the required hardware and software setup.
	The complete code base of the application will be provided to the bidder upon execution of a contract.

	20
	Could you share the URL of the current application to review?
	No, the current application operates on the intranet and is only accessible to CAC-authenticated users on the DoD network.  It is not accessible externally.

	21
	Is it required to provide maintenance after the enhancements?
	No, once the deliverables are delivered, QA/QCed, and verified operational and working as they should in the application (without causing any secondary issues to other components of the application) no additional maintenance is required as part of the scope.

	22
	What if there is a delay due to unforeseen reasons? Is there a penalty clause?
	These are uncertain times.  The short answer is no.  We have procedures in place to extend the duration (for a justified reason agreed upon by both the Department and the bidder) of the contract if necessary.

	23
	Is it possible to share hardware details of the existing infra to understand the performance of the system?
	The GIS operates on three servers, a virtual application server running the GISTAR application, a virtual file server running ArcGIS Server for the imagery, and a standalone file server running ArcGIS Server and MS SQL Server 2016.
The application server has 32GB or RAM, three 2.6GHz processors and runs on Windows Server 2012 R2.  The virtual file server has 32GB or RAM, three 2.6 and runs on Windows Server 2016.  The standalone file server has 80GB of RAM, a 3.5GHz processor and runs on Windows Server 2012 R2.

	24
	How many concurrent users are using the current system?
	Regarding the GISTAR application, at any given time there could be as many as 5 – 10 end users.  That is a ballpark guess.  More frequently, 1 – 2 users at a time could be expected. Regarding ArcGIS Desktop users, there are approximately 5 – 10 throughout the organization.

	25
	Does the Department have a testing/staging server?
	No, there is not a staging server.

	26
	We are assuming that data is in 2D format. Please confirm.
	Yes, currently all the data is in 2D format.

	27
	As per RFP, there are several custom Python scripts set to run on a weekly schedule that pulls data from different sources, merge it with the ArcSDE database and consume it in some of the custom tools in GISTAR.
	The two deliverables that utilize python scripts are 7 and 11.  Both scripts will likely need to be updated to accommodate the changes. 

	28
	1. Can we expect changes/enhancements to be made in the existing python scripts?
	There should be no changes to the current data model/data store, other than adding to it.  

	29
	2. We understand that there are no changes required in the current data model/ data store. Please confirm.
	Deliverable 11 involves incorporating the HOSS data, which is only distributed as a map service.  The EGAD data is distributed in the form of a text file, which is then converted to an X,Y feature class and stored in a separate file geodatabase.

	30
	We anticipate that there will not be any new tools to be developed except updates for the existing 13 tools. Please confirm.
	For Deliverable 7, the bidder has the choice to either update the existing Unit Drive Analysis Tool or copy/create a new one to incorporate the functionality specified in the deliverable.  Deliverables 12 and 13 are NEW tools to be created or downloaded/configured from an existing template.  These tools do not currently exist in the application.

	31
	Could you provide more details on this tool?
	ECOP stands for Environmental Condition of Property.  The purpose of the tool is to locate an area on the map, typically a current of future construction project location, and identify any/all relevant environmental sites that are located within a certain distance of that project.  These sites could include former oil storage spill sites, leaking storage tanks, hazardous waste remediation sites, or several other sites of concern.  Currently, the tool has two inputs, one from the Maine Dept. of Environmental Protection (original format comma delimited text file) and the other from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (original format map service).  The python script(s) gather thee data from both websites in their native formats, convert them to X, Y feature classes and store them in a standalone file geodatabase, and uses these datasets as inputs for the ECOP Tool.  The tool creates a multi-ring buffer (1/2 mile and 1 mile) around the project location and identifies any sits from the input datasets that fall within those buffers.  Depending on the site type, some are filtered and displayed within ½ mile, others are relevant and displayed within one mile.  The sites identified are highlighted and the identify window appears allowing the user to expand each site for more info. 

	32
	The RFP states that GISTAR is built upon GIS Inc.'s OneView platform.

As such, as this an open procurement or a procurement that can only be

Answered by GIS Inc. because they are the developer of OneView?
	This is open to any vendor.  We purchased the initial OneView platform from GISinc.  It has already been modified from the initial installation.  It can be modified and customized by any vendor familiar with the ArcGIS API for JavaScript and HTML5.

	33
	Will the source code for GISTAR be available for review to determine the

Work effort required for the requested enhancements?
	The source code cannot be provided beforehand. It will be provided to the awarded bidder immediately upon completion of the contract.

	34
	Is DVEM open to a non GIS OneView solution to meet their needs?
	The Department is open to any solution that achieves its goals/deliverables stated in the RFP.  All the existing functionality of the application must also remain intact and operational.

	35
	Does GISTAR utilize a front-end framework such as: Bootstrap, JQuery, Angular, React, Vue, etc...?
	Yes, it uses Bootstrap and jQuery.

	36
	How will vendors access data stored on the database and image servers behind the DoD federal network firewall to ensure upgrades function properly with all GIS data layers?
	The Department can package the data and map services to provide the awarded bidder. The imagery and image services may be more difficult due to size limitations, but we are confident we can provide at least partial datasets to be used for testing.

	37
	Does MEARNG expect vendor to replicate ArcGIS Server 10.6.1, ArcSDE versioned geodatabase, and image server to code, build, and test upgrades?
	This may be the best course of action to replicate the MEARNG environment.  This may be unnecessary for some of the upgrades that require minor, or at least not wholesale changes to the code.  Testing in the MEARNG environment is fine via web or phone conference between the MEARNG GIS Manager and the bidder so long as troubleshooting leads to desired outcomes.

	38
	Do any of the custom tools being updated in GISTAR interface with the Python scripts that pull data from different sources and merge it with the ArcSDE database? If yes, must the Python tools be updated?
	Yes.  Both deliverables 7 & 11 interface with Python scripts.  Deliverable 7 will likely need to be updated, although depending on the course of action the vendor goes, this may not be necessary.  Deliverable 11 will definitely need to be updated to incorporate the HOSS data.

	39
	Which web browsers must GISTAR upgrades be compatible?
	GISTAR is currently compatible with MS IE, MS Edge, and Google Chrome.  The application was built and tested using Google Chrome.  For the purposes of this RFP, as long as the updates/changes are performed, tested and functioning in the Google Chrome environment, that is sufficient.

	40
	What does ECOP mean? It is not listed in acronyms table.
	ECOP stands for Environmental Condition of Property.  The tool basically does a preliminary phase I assessment of a project site utilizing data available from the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP) and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).

	41
	Is the HOSS map service an ArcGIS service hosted on MEARNG’s ArcGIS Server, or a service that uses a different framework?  Are there any DoD firewall restrictions when communicating with this map service?
	The HOSS map service is hosted by the MEDEP and resides on the State of Maine network.  As stated, we currently consume a map service from the USEPA, which resides on another federal network.  The Department is currently consuming dozens of State of Maine map/feature services without any issues.
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